

Charge Ready NY Program Program Opportunity Notice (PON) 3923

IMPLEMENTATION MANUAL

Last Updated: September 18, 2018

Table of Contents

1.0	BACKGROUND	3
1.	1 PROGRAM OVERVIEW	3
1.	2 PROGRAM CONTACTS	4
2.0	DEFINITIONS	4
3.0	PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY	6
3.	1 CHARGING EQUIPMENT ELIGIBILITY	6
3.	2 EQUIPMENT OWNER ELIGIBILITY	6
3.	3 SITE ELIGIBILITY RULES	7
4.	INCENTIVE AMOUNTS	7
5.	INCENTIVE APPLICATION PROCESS	8
6.	PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS	9
7	REQUIRED DOCUMENTS	10
8.	OPERATION OF EQUIPMENT AND DATA PROVISION	. 10
9.	INCENTIVE DISTRIBUTION PROCESS	. 11
10.	APPEALS PROCESS	. 11
11	RESEARCH PARTICIPATION	11

1.0 BACKGROUND

The **Charge Ready NY Program** (Program) is an incentive program designed to accelerate the deployment of electric vehicle charging equipment in New York State. By increasing the use of electric vehicles and electric vehicle charging stations, this program benefits New York State by reducing harmful emissions and the transportation sector's dependence on petroleum. The New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) developed the Program to provide incentives that reduce the cost of purchasing and installing qualified Level 2 charging equipment for use in New York State.

Note to Applicants: At the time an Equipment Owner's pre-application or application is approved, the most current version of the Implementation Manual and the Terms and Conditions signed by the Equipment Owner will apply.

This document constitutes the Implementation Manual for the Program. Definitions of key program parameters are located in the next section of the Manual.

1.1 PROGRAM OVERVIEW

The Program is an incentive program that reduces the cost of purchasing and installing qualified Level 2 charging equipment at a New York State location that provides public charging, workplace charging, or charging at a multi-unit dwelling (MUD). Public and private (both forprofit and not-for-profit) entities may participate in the Program. NYSERDA intends to provide incentives of \$4,000 per charging port installed upon completion of the installation of charging equipment and the provision of appropriate documentation.

The Program is initially offering \$5 million in funding for incentives and will accept applications until December 31, 2021 or until the program runs out of funds, whichever comes first.

Additional information about the program, current lists of qualified charging equipment and networks, and the current amount of funding remaining in the program can be found on NYSERDA's website, www.nyserda.ny.gov/charge-ready-ny. Charging equipment and network service eligibility rules are defined in Section 3.1 of this Manual.

The Program allows Equipment Owners to participate in one of two ways:

- 1. Equipment Owners can apply for pre-approval of an incentive payment for the purchase and installation of qualified charging equipment, which reserves funding for their charging equipment. They then must complete their installations and submit required documentation within one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days. Upon approval of all documentation, NYSERDA will issue an incentive payment directly to the Equipment Owner in the form of a paper check or by electronic payment.
- 2. Equipment Owners can apply for an incentive payment for the purchase and installation of qualified charging equipment after the installation is completed, as long as the installation was completed after the Program Effective Date and the application is submitted within 90 days of the Installation Date. As part of their application they must submit all required documentation. Upon approval of all documentation, NYSERDA will

issue an incentive payment directly to the Equipment Owner in the form of a live check or by electronic payment.

Important: Program requirements are determined by NYSERDA which, in its sole discretion reserves the right to make changes to Program elements such as, but not limited to, eligible equipment and networks, incentive amounts, and Equipment Owner requirements.

1.2 PROGRAM CONTACTS

All Program questions should be directed to the Center for Sustainable Energy (CSE), the Program administrator:

Center for Sustainable Energy 50 Milk Street, 16th Floor Boston, MA 02109

Phone: 866-595-7917

Email: ChargeReadyNY@energycenter.org

If CSE program staff are unable to resolve your issue and you need to speak with someone at NYSERDA, please contact the NYSERDA Project Manager:

David McCabe
Project Manager
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority
17 Columbia Circle
Albany, New York 12203
(518) 862-1090 ext. 3281
(518) 862-1091 FAX
david.mccabe@nyserda.ny.gov
www.nyserda.ny.gov

2.0 **DEFINITIONS**

Charge Ready NY Program (Program) is a program that provides incentives for the purchase and installation of electric vehicle charging equipment in New York State. It is run by NYSERDA and administered by CSE.

Charging Equipment Vendor is a provider of qualified Charging Equipment. The Charging Equipment Vendor must qualify its Charging Equipment through RFQL 3902 to be eligible to participate in the Program.

Electric Vehicle (EV) is a four-wheel light duty vehicle capable of highway speeds that is powered fully or in part by an electric motor and is rechargeable from an external connection to an off-board electrical source.

Electric Vehicle Charging Equipment (Charging Equipment) is a Level 2 electric vehicle charging station that meets all requirements of RFQL 3902 (see also Qualified Charging Equipment).

Equipment Owner is the entity that purchases the Charging Equipment. The Equipment Owner is also the recipient of the incentive payment.

Installation Date is the date on which the Charging Equipment is affixed to its permanent location, connected to the electrical source, and ready for use (including connected to a network for networked Charging Equipment).

Installer is the entity that installs the Charging Equipment. The Installer may or may not be the same as the Equipment Owner.

Network Services Vendor is a provider of network services for qualified Charging Equipment. The Network Services Vendor must qualify its network through RFQL 3902 to be eligible to participate in the Program.

New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) promotes energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy sources. NYSERDA advances innovative energy solutions in ways that improve New York's economy and environment. NYSERDA is the state Authority in charge of the Program.

Pre-Approval Date is the date that NYSERDA approves the Equipment Owner's application for pre-approval for a Charge Ready NY incentive.

Program Administrator is the Center for Sustainable Energy or other NYSERDA designee responsible for receiving and reviewing applications to the Program, responding to questions from Program participants, and conducting other administrative tasks related to the Program.

Program Effective Date is September 18, 2018. This is the date the Charge Ready NY program launched.

Qualified Charging Equipment is Charging Equipment that has been approved for use in the Program. The offering Charging Equipment Vendor must apply for and receive approval through RFQL 3902 to qualify for the Program.

Qualified Network Services are network services that have been approved for use in the Program. The offering Network Services Vendor must apply for and receive approval through RFQL 3902 to qualify for the Program.

RFQL 3902 refers to NYSERDA's Charge Ready NY Equipment and Network Qualification Process solicitation, through which NYSERDA qualifies charging equipment and network services for eligibility in the Program.

Site Owner is the owner of the site at which the Charging Equipment is installed. The Site Owner may or may not be the same as the Equipment Owner.

3.0 PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

3.1 CHARGING EQUIPMENT AND NETWORK SERVICE ELIGIBILITY

To receive an incentive payment through the Program, Equipment Owners must purchase and install one or more units of Qualified Charging Equipment. To qualify their equipment for the Program, Charging Equipment Vendors and Network Services Vendors must submit an application to RFQL 3902, Charge Ready NY Equipment and Network Qualification Process, and NYSERDA must confirm that the equipment meets all requirements for qualified charging equipment described in RFQL 3902. Qualified charging equipment will be listed on NYSERDA's website and updated as needed. Charging Equipment Vendors and Network Services Vendors may submit new applications or update information about existing qualified equipment throughout the time that the Program is active, no more than once every three months.

As part of the equipment and network qualification process, Charging Equipment Vendors and Network Services Vendors will provide technical information about the qualified equipment and networks and will provide a list of distributors and vendors who sell the equipment and networks in New York State, with contact information so Equipment Owners can contact these entities to request quotes. Charging Equipment Vendors and Network Services Vendors must agree to the terms and conditions required for participating in the Program. Charging Equipment Vendors and Network Services Vendors are encouraged to attend an available training on how the Program works. A recording of the trainings will be posted on the Charge Ready NY website.

3.2 EQUIPMENT OWNER ELIGIBILITY

To be eligible for a Program incentive payment, an Equipment Owner must meet the following conditions:

- 1. Be a corporation licensed to do business in New York State, including not-for-profit corporations; a State agency or political subdivision of the State, including municipalities, school districts, and other local government entities.
- 2. Be an organization with an Employer Identification Number (EIN).
- 3. Purchase and install qualified charging equipment at a site in New York State that meets site eligibility requirements (see Section 3.3).
- 4. Projects that have received funding for charging stations from any of the below programs are ineligible for Charge Ready NY.
 - a. NYSDEC's Municipal Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) and ZEV Infrastructure Rebate Program
 - Community-based EV Charging and EV Rebate Program administered by EV Connect
 - c. Calstart/ChargePoint's Charge to Work NY Program
 - d. NYPA's ReCharge NY Workplace Charging Program
 - e. Any other NYSERDA initiatives that provide incentives for installing charging equipment, such as the Clean Energy Communities program.

Projects participating in Charge Ready NY may also claim the New York State tax credit for installing charging stations (more information at

https://www.tax.ny.gov/pit/credits/alt_fuels_elec_vehicles.htm). The tax credit is applied after taking out the amount received from NYSERDA.

3.3 SITE ELIGIBILITY RULES

Equipment Owners must install charging equipment at one of the following types of sites:

Public Site: A public site is a parking facility with at least ten (10) parking spaces that is open to the general public at least twelve (12) hours per day, at least five (5) days per week. Examples of public sites include municipal or privately operated parking lots or garages, parking at retail locations, restaurants, parks, transit stations, schools, destination locations, etc. Charging Equipment at public sites may be intended primarily for patrons but should be available to any visitor to use. Charging Equipment installed at public sites must be networked charging equipment.

Workplace Site: A workplace site is a parking facility with at least ten (10) parking spaces that primarily serves employees who work at or nearby the facility. Workplace sites must have a minimum of 15 employees regularly working at the site. The Charging Equipment must either be installed at parking spaces reserved for employees or be installed in a general use parking facility at which at least 50 percent of people parking at a workplace site on a typical business day are employees of an organization doing business on or adjacent to the premises. Workplace sites may be employee-only parking lots or parking areas. Charging Equipment at workplace sites may be restricted to use by employees only or may be open to a broader user group. Examples of workplace sites include office buildings, universities, schools, hospitals, and other similar facilities. Charging Equipment installed at workplace sites must be networked charging equipment.

Multi-Unit Dwelling (MUD) Site: A MUD site is a parking facility with at least eight (8) parking spaces that primarily serves a MUD with five (5) or more housing units. More than 50 percent of vehicles regularly parked at a MUD site between 7 PM and 7 AM must be resident-owned. Examples of MUD sites include apartment buildings, condominiums, and co-ops. Individual residents or tenants who are not the building owner may not be the Equipment Owner at a MUD site. Charging Equipment at MUD sites may be restricted to use by residents only or may be open to a broader user group. Charging Equipment installed at MUD sites may be either networked or non-networked charging equipment.

4. INCENTIVE AMOUNTS

Equipment Owners may receive an incentive payment of \$4,000 per charging port installed. Charging equipment with a single charging port is eligible for an incentive of \$4,000. Charging equipment with two charging ports (a dual charging station) is eligible for an incentive of \$8,000. No entity may receive more than \$200,000 in Charge Ready NY incentives in a single calendar year.

Note: Incentive amounts and the criteria used to determine them are subject to change at NYSERDA's sole discretion. NYSERDA will provide at least 30 days' notice to all program participants before new incentive amounts take effect.

5. INCENTIVE APPLICATION PROCESS

The incentive application process is described in a flow diagram in Appendix A.

NYSERDA will pay the Incentive once the Equipment Owner has met the requirements of the Program as described in the Manual. This includes but is not limited to (1) Agreeing to all Program requirements, (2) Installing all Qualified Charging Equipment in accordance with program rules and all applicable federal, state, and local rules and regulations, and (3) Providing accurate and complete documentation of the Qualified Charging Equipment purchase and installation to NYSERDA.

To qualify for an incentive, Equipment Owners may either pre-apply for incentives or apply for incentives within 90 days after the Installation Date, as described below. Incentives are available on a first-come, first-served basis.

To participate in the Program, the Equipment Owner must first complete a Contractor Application, which can be completed at

http://portal.nyserda.ny.gov/CORE_CONAPP_Program_Page?programFamily=Innovation&programName=Public_Electric_Vehicle_Supply_Equipment. The Program Administrator shall review contractor applications for completeness and eligibility and respond to applicants within five (5) business days. Upon approval of the contractor application, the Equipment Owner will receive a link to log into the NYSERDA Portal. The first time the Equipment Owner logs into the NYSERDA Portal, they will be prompted to update their password. The Equipment Owner can then proceed to complete the incentive application, either as a pre-approval or post-installation approval.

If Equipment Owners pre-apply for incentive approval, NYSERDA will reserve program funds for the Equipment Owner upon successful review by the Program Administrator and NYSERDA of the Equipment Owner's pre-approval application. The Equipment Owner shall have one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the Pre-Approval Date to submit final documentation for their incentive. If final documentation is not received within one-hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the Pre-Approval Date, the pre-approval will be cancelled, the reserved funds will be released, and the Equipment Owner must reapply. The Equipment Owner will be notified of the cancellation via email. Equipment Owners who initially receive a pre-approval that is cancelled may apply again for pre-approval if their Charging Equipment is not yet installed or may apply for incentive approval after completion of their installation, if they meet the requirements for post-installation applications. Pre-approval does not guarantee an Equipment Owner will receive any funds from the Program. Pre-approval only reserves funds in the Program budget for the Equipment Owner, which can receive them contingent upon completing the pre-approved Charging Equipment installation, completing all Program requirements, and submitting all required documentation.

Equipment Owners who choose to apply for incentive approval after they complete their installations shall have ninety (90) calendar days from the Installation Date to submit final documentation for their incentive. Charging Equipment with an Installation Date prior to the Program Effective Date are not eligible for an incentive.

Equipment Owners shall submit incentive applications through NYSERDA's web portal (nyserdaportal.force.com).

The Program Administrator shall have ten (10) calendar days to review submitted incentive applications. Submitted applications that are complete and accurate and include all required documents will be approved.

If an application or its required documents are determined to be incomplete, illegible, or missing required information, the Equipment Owner will be notified of the error via email and shall have fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of notification to correct any errors. If the errors are not corrected within fifteen (15) calendar days, the application will be cancelled and the reserved funds will be released. If an application is submitted but determined to be ineligible, it will be cancelled, the reserved funds will be released, and the Equipment Owner will be notified via email.

If an incentive application is cancelled, Equipment Owners can reapply for an incentive for that Charging Equipment as long as it is still within ninety (90) calendar days of the Installation Date.

Participation in the Program does NOT constitute a competitive bid process in place of an Equipment Owner's required competitive bid processes. Equipment Owners must follow their own procurement rules for selecting a vendor for charging equipment, if applicable. Other competitive bid processes, such as state procurement contracts, may be available for Equipment Owners to use. Contact the Program Administrator for more information.

6. PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

To participate in the Program, Equipment Owners must meet or agree to the following conditions:

- 1. Sign and agree to the Equipment Owner Agreement
- 2. Provide all required documentation about the charging equipment and installation to NYSERDA.
- 3. Operate the charging equipment for at least four (4) years from the Installation Date.
- 4. If the installed charging equipment is networked, the Equipment Owner must purchase at least one (1) year of network service provision at the time of installation. The Equipment Owner can change network providers at a later date but must provide NYSERDA access to charging data through a Network Services Vendor for the four (4) years of operation. The Equipment Owner must add NYSERDA to its network account as an administrator with limited rights to access charging data (preferred) or establish regular recurring data transfers to NYSERDA for the duration of the four (4) years, as described in Section 7.
- 5. Allow NYSERDA to share the charging equipment information, Equipment Owner contact information, and the installation address with the electric distribution utility serving that location, for the purpose of informing the utilities' system planning efforts, and with the U.S. Department of Energy, which compiles information about charging equipment to share with EV drivers through the Alternative Fuels Data Center (AFDC).
- 6. Agree to participate in online surveys and other research efforts that support Program goals.

7. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

Equipment Owners must submit required documents for each incentive application. To receive pre-approval for an incentive application, Equipment Owners must submit:

- Completed application form (completed online)
- Copy of Permit: Scan of building permit to install charging equipment or note from the authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) that no building permit is required
- Site Host Agreement: Scan of signed Site Host Agreement
- Scan of quote(s) from installers for the installation of Charging Equipment

Following charging equipment installation, all Equipment Owners must submit the following required documents, at a minimum, to receive their incentive payment:

- Completed application form (completed online)
- Serial numbers and GPS coordinates for all charging equipment (submitted as part of completed application)
- Copy of Permit: Scan of building permit to install charging equipment or note from the authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) that no building permit is required
- **Installed Site Photo:** Photo of the charging equipment installed so the equipment is visible at its site
- Serial Number Photo: Photo of the serial number on each piece of charging equipment
- Charging Equipment Installer Certification: Scan of signed Charging Equipment Installer Certification. If the Equipment Owner self-installed the Charging Equipment, the Owner must still complete this form.
- **Site Host Agreement:** Scan of signed Site Host Agreement. If the Equipment Owner is also the property owner of the installation site, the Owner must still complete this form.
- **Network Service Agreement:** Scan of proof of payment for one (1) year of network services (where applicable)
- **Proof of payment for equipment:** Scan of proof of payment for Qualified Charging Equipment. The proof of payment for the equipment should list information about the vendor (name, company, contact information), the make and model name of the specific equipment purchased, per-unit costs, any accessories purchased along with their costs, and the total cost.
- Proof of payment for installation services: Scan of proof of payment from installer for
 the installation of Qualified Charging Equipment. The proof of payment should include
 information about the installer (name, company, contact information), a breakdown of
 costs by materials (as specific as possible, on a per-unit cost basis and total cost basis)
 and labor (hourly rates and number of hours at each rate), other expenses such as
 permits, and the total cost.

Equipment Owners must submit scanned versions of the documents through the NYSERDA web portal, which can be found at nyserda-portal.force.com. NYSERDA reserves the right to require additional documentation if needed for verification of any element of incentive eligibility.

8. OPERATION OF EQUIPMENT AND DATA PROVISION

Equipment Owners must continue to own and operate the charging equipment for a period of no less than four (4) years from the date of installation. If the Equipment Owner ceases to operate

the charging equipment before the end of this term, NYSERDA may require repayment of a portion of the incentive payment proportional to the amount of time the equipment was not in operation compared to the required period of operation unless the equipment is sold to a buyer who commits to operating the equipment at the same location for the full four-year term and maintaining reporting requirements. For instance, if the equipment was in operation for only three years, NYSERDA may require repayment of 25 percent of the incentive payment.

As part of the operation of equipment, the Equipment Owner must provide all data requested to NYSERDA on a regular basis. For networked stations, the Equipment Owner must set up access to usage data through the Network Services Vendor, either by providing NYSERDA with limited administrative access to the network data (preferred) or by establishing regular recurring data transfers to NYSERDA for the duration of the four (4) years, no less than quarterly. Network Service Vendors, NYSERDA, or the Program Administrator will be able to provide instructions for establishing NYSERDA as an administrator with data access. For non-networked stations, the Equipment Owner must provide NYSERDA with regular data reporting on electricity use and number of regular users, to the best extent possible.

9. INCENTIVE DISTRIBUTION PROCESS

Incentives will be issued to Equipment Owners via a paper check or by electronic payment. Equipment Owners may select the payment option they prefer in the NYSERDA web portal. Per New York State's prompt payment policy, payments to Equipment Owners can be expected within 30 days of application approval.

10. APPEALS PROCESS

NYSERDA will consider appeals to the denial of an incentive application, which will be decided on a case-by-case basis. To submit an appeal, contact the Program Administrator.

11. RESEARCH PARTICIPATION

NYSERDA may require Equipment Owners to participate in surveys and may request participation from Equipment Owners in other research efforts that support Program goals.



Appendix A

Incentive Application Process Flow Chart

